
1 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING of the Executive Committee of the 
Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (PCEA) 

Monday, March 11, 2019 
8:00 a.m. 

 
Peninsula Clean Energy, 2075 Woodside Road,  

Redwood City, CA 94061  
 
 
 

Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special assistance or a 
disability-related modification or accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to 
participate in this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternative format for 
the agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the 
meeting, should contact Anne Bartoletti, Agenda Administrator, at least 12 hours before the 
meeting at (650) 260-0111 and/or abartoletti@peninsulacleanenergy.com. Notification in 
advance of the meeting will enable the PCEA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it. Attendees to this meeting are 
reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products. 

  
If you wish to speak to the Committee, please fill out a speaker’s slip located on the tables as 
you enter the meeting room. If you have anything that you wish to be distributed to the 
Committee and included in the official record, please hand it to a member of PCEA staff who will 
distribute the information to the Committee members and other staff. 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Committee on any PCEA-related 
matters that are as follows: 1) Not otherwise on this meeting agenda; 2) Listed on the Consent 
Agenda; 3) Chief Executive Officer’s or Staff Report on the Regular Agenda; or 4) Committee 
Members’ Reports on the Regular Agenda. Public comments on matters not listed above shall 
be heard at the time the matter is called.  
  
As with all public comment, members of the public who wish to address the Committee are 
requested to complete a speaker’s slip and provide it to PCEA staff. Speakers are customarily 
limited to two minutes, but an extension can be provided to you at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair. 
 
ACTION TO SET AGENDA AND TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
This item is to set the final consent and regular agenda, and for approval of the items listed on 
the consent agenda.  All items on the consent agenda are approved by one action. 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

1. Chair Report (Discussion) 
 

2. CEO Report (Discussion) 

3. Review PCE Staffing and Organizational Changes (Discussion) 

4. Discuss potential changes to PCE JPA Agreement to allow member jurisdictions to 
appoint citizens as Alternate Board members (Discussion) 

5. Review Multi-Unit Dwelling (MUD) Low Power Pilot Project (Discussion)  

6. Committee Members’ Reports (Discussion) 

 

                                            CONSENT AGENDA 

7. Approval of the Minutes for the December 10, 2018 Meeting (Action) 

Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular board meeting 
are available for public inspection.  Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior 
to the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all 
members, or a majority of the members of the Board.  The Board has designated the 
Peninsula Clean Energy office, located at 2075 Woodside Road, Redwood City, CA 94061, for 
the purpose of making those public records available for inspection.  The documents are also 
available on the PCEA’s Internet Web site.  The website is located at: 
http://www.peninsulacleanenergy.com.  

 
 

 

 
 
 



Item No. 5 

Page 1 of 1 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY 
JPA Board Correspondence 

 
 DATE: March 6, 2019 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: March 11, 2019 
 SPECIAL NOTICE/HEARING: None 
 VOTE REQUIRED: None   
 
TO:  Honorable Peninsula Clean Energy Authority Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Jan Pepper, Chief Executive Officer, Peninsula Clean Energy 
  Rafael Reyes, Director of Energy Programs  
 
SUBJECT: Review Multi-Unit Dwelling (MUD) Low Power Pilot Project  
 
 
Attached is the Request for Proposal that was issued for PCE’s Multi-Unit Dwelling 
(MUD) Low Power Pilot Project.   
 
 



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 1 of 17 
 

 
 

Request for Proposals for 
2019 Low Power Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure 

Pilot Program 
 

Peninsula Clean Energy is San Mateo County’s locally-controlled electricity provider. We are 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and offering customer choice at competitive rates. 

 
Offers due Thurs., Feb. 14, 2019 at 5:00 pm Pacific Time 

 
Contents 
1 RFP Overview ............................................................................................................. 2 

2 About Peninsula Clean Energy (PCE) ........................................................................ 2 

3 RFP Schedule ............................................................................................................. 4 

4 Proposal Submittal ...................................................................................................... 4 

5 Content of Response .................................................................................................. 4 

6 Review and Selection Process ................................................................................... 6 

7 Agreement Terms ....................................................................................................... 6 

8 Supplier Diversity ........................................................................................................ 6 

9 PCE Legal Obligations ................................................................................................ 7 

10 General Terms and Conditions ................................................................................ 8 

11 Detailed Project Description ..................................................................................... 8 

 
Attachments 

• Supplier Diversity Questionnaire (Optional) – completed by vendor 



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 2 of 17 
 

Peninsula Clean Energy (PCE), a California Joint Powers Authority, is seeking 
proposals from interested vendors to respond to this RFP. 

 

1 RFP Overview 
 
Peninsula Clean Energy (PCE) programs include advancing the adoption of electric 
vehicles and transitioning building fossil fuel uses to low-carbon electricity. With this 
request for proposals (RFP), PCE requests proposals to execute an emerging 
technology program to identify and pilot enhanced low-power electric vehicle charging 
solutions. 
 
This RFP 

• Provides general background on PCE 
• Describes the service sought by PCE (scope of work) 
• Provides an opportunity for Proposers to describe their qualifications and 

assets and explain how they could contribute to the program 
 
 

2 About Peninsula Clean Energy (PCE) 
 
Peninsula Clean Energy (PCE), a community choice energy (CCE) aggregator, is San 
Mateo County’s official electricity provider.  Formed in February 2016, PCE is a joint 
powers authority, consisting of the County of San Mateo and all twenty of its towns and 
cities. PCE provides cleaner and greener electricity, and at lower rates, than the 
incumbent investor-owned utility (IOU), Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E).  PCE 
plans for and secures commitments from a diverse portfolio of energy-generating 
resources to reliably serve the electric energy requirements of its customers over the 
near-, mid-, and long-term planning horizons.  PCE’s programs include advancing the 
adoption of electric vehicles and transitioning building fossil fuel uses to low-carbon 
electricity. For more information on PCE, please go to www.peninsulacleanenergy.com.   
 
As part of its mission-driven, collaborative, not-for-profit, locally-focused roots, PCE is 
committed to the following set of strategic goals: 
 

1. Design a diverse power portfolio that is greenhouse gas free.  
• 100% GHG free by 2021  
• sourced by 100% CA RPS eligible renewable energy by 2025 on a time 

coincident basis, provided it is economically viable  
• create a minimum of 20 MWs of new local power by 2025  

 
2. Continually strive to offer ECOPlus at rates that are lower than PG&E rates 

provided it is economically viable.  
 

http://www.peninsulacleanenergy.com/


  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 3 of 17 
 

3. Stimulate development of new renewable energy generation and storage 
projects in San Mateo County and California through PCE’s procurement 
activities.  
 

4. Demonstrate quantifiable economic and environmental justice benefits to the 
County/region including by placing a priority on local hiring and inclusionary 
workforce development practices with a goal of increasing diversity.  
 

5. Implement programs to further reduce greenhouse gas emissions and 
support the county’s community-wide efforts to be completely GHG-free by 
2045 by investing in electric transportation, energy efficiency and demand 
response, and partnering effectively with municipalities, business, schools, 
and nonprofit/faith organizations.  
 

6. Maximize and maintain customer participation in PCE.  
• Provide a superior customer experience  
• Develop PCE brand awareness and loyalty throughout the County.  
• Actively encourage voluntary participation in its ECO100 renewable 

energy product  
• Actively encourage participation in other programs PCE develops  
• Achieve recognition as an EPA Green Power Community for all cities 

and towns in San Mateo County and EPA Green Power Partnership for 
all cities with municipal accounts enrolled in ECO100 by 2018  

 
7. Build a financially sustainable organization.  

• Build sufficient reserves in a rate stabilization fund  
• Achieve an investment grade credit rating by 2021  

 
8. Foster a work environment that espouses sustainable business practices and 

cultivates a culture of innovation, diversity, transparency, integrity, and 
commitment to the organization’s mission and the communities it serves.  
 

9. Leverage Peninsula Clean Energy/Silicon Valley expertise and relationships 
to support innovation across all of PCE’s programs and activities.  
 

10. Assist in setting up CCAs in other areas of the state, including where PCE 
has utility scale generation.  

 
  



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 4 of 17 
 

3 RFP Schedule 

 
Date Event 

Wed., Jan. 2, 2019 PCE launches RFP:  publishes RFP Instructions. 

Thurs., Jan. 17, 2019 Deadline for Proposers to submit questions (see 
below) 

Tue., Jan. 22, 2019 PCE provides responses to questions on PCE’s 
website  

Thurs., Feb. 14, 2019 Deadline for Proposers to submit proposals 

Tue., Feb. 26, 2019 and  
Wed., Feb. 27, 2019 

Possible in-person interviews of top proposers 

Wed., Mar. 6, 2019 Anticipated date PCE will notify awardee  
 

Thurs., Mar. 28, 2019 Anticipated date for Board execution of contract 

 
Questions: 

• Question & Answer:  Proposers may submit questions concerning the RFP at 
programs@peninsulacleanenergy.com.  All questions and answers will be shared 
with all Proposers and will be posted on PCE’s website.   

 
• Proposal Review: PCE may request clarifications by email or phone February 

15, 2019, through February 22, 2019. Prompt responses will be requested.   
   
 

4 Proposal Submittal 
 
Proposals must be received on or before the above deadline and submittal must be by 
email to programs@peninsulacleanenergy.com with the subject “Proposal - 
<Organization> Low-Power EVI Pilot”.  
 
By participating in PCE’s RFP process, a Proposer acknowledges that it has read, 
understands, and agrees to the terms and conditions set forth in these RFP Instructions.  
PCE reserves the right to reject any offer that does not comply with the requirements 
identified herein. Furthermore, PCE may, in its sole discretion and without notice, 
modify, suspend, or terminate the RFP without liability to any organization or individual.  
The RFP does not constitute an offer to buy or create an obligation for PCE to enter into 
an agreement with any party, and PCE shall not be bound by the terms of any offer until 
PCE has entered into a fully executed agreement. 
 
Only electronic submittals will be accepted.   
 

5 Content of Response 

mailto:programs@peninsulacleanenergy.com
mailto:programs@peninsulacleanenergy.com


  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 5 of 17 
 

 
Interested vendors must submit the following documents (except those marked 

“Optional”) to be considered for awarding of this proposal: 

1. Cover Letter with the following elements (1 page):  

• Reference to this RFP 

• Legal business name, address, telephone number, and business status 

(corporation, limited partnership, individual, etc.).  

• Name of vendor’s representative with respect to this RFP along with 

telephone number and email address.  

• A signature of an authorized individual.  
 

2. Approach (6 pg. max.): 

• Goals and measurable objectives. 

• Technical approach. 

• Key challenges and resolutions. 
 

3. Qualifications and Experience (4 pg. max.): Submit the following information -  

• A brief summary of vendor’s history and background.  

• A summary of similar projects completed or worked on within the last 2 

years in California 

• A summary of project and/or program experience within San Mateo 

County 

• Strategies deployed to foster competitiveness and reduce customer 

pricing 

• Identification of relevant licenses and certifications. 
 

4. References:  

• Contact information for three (3) references from work performed in the 

last three years. Please include scope of work, dates of contract, contract 

amount, contact person, telephone number, and email address 

 

5. Certificates of Insurance for the following coverages: 

• Commercial General Liability – for bodily injury, property damage, and 

personal injury $1,000,000 – each occurrence $2,000,000 – in aggregate 

• Business Automobile Liability – “any auto” (Company Vehicles) – At least 

$1,000,000 

• Personal Automobile Liability – “any auto” (Personal Vehicles) – At least 

$500,000 

• Worker’s Compensation and Employer's’ Liability (EPL)– injury or death, 

each accident At least $1,000,000 (EPL not required for Sole Proprietor) 
 

6. Supplier Diversity Questionnaire (Optional): PCE’s Supplier Diversity 

Questionnaire is attached to this RFP. Please note, your response (or lack 



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 6 of 17 
 

thereof) will have no impact on your contract status or eligibility to work with PCE 

in accordance with state law.  

 

7. Proposed Schedule (table or chart, 1 pg. max) 

 

8. Cost Proposal (2 pg. max, include rate schedule) 
 

9. Confirmation of acceptance of contract terms or explanation of proposed contract 

modifications (see Agreement Terms) 

 

10. Project staff credentials (no page limit) 

 
 

6 Review and Selection Process 
 
PCE staff will evaluate the proposals provided based on the following criteria: 
 

1. Completeness of proposal 
2. Qualifications of the firm and staff 
3. Proposed approach to implement project including capacity to maximize impact 

through existing relationships and relevant experience 
4. Past experience  
5. Cost structure 
6. Exceptions to PCE’s contract template 

 

7 Agreement Terms 
 
Awardees will be required to enter into a contract using PCE’s standard contract terms. 
Modification of the contract terms may be proposed by the Proposer for consideration 
by PCE but are not guaranteed to be accepted. Rejection of the final terms from PCE is 
grounds for disqualification. 
 
PCE’s standard contract terms are available for review here:  
https://tinyurl.com/pcecontractemplate 
 

8 Supplier Diversity  
 

Consistent with its strategic goals, PCE has a strong commitment to foster a work 
environment that espouses sustainable business practices and cultivates a culture of 
innovation, diversity, transparency, integrity, and commitment to the organization’s 
mission and the communities it serves. As part of that goal, PCE strives to ensure its 
use of vendors and suppliers who share its commitment to sustainable business and 
inclusionary practices.  
 

https://tinyurl.com/pcecontractemplate


  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 7 of 17 
 

To help ensure an inclusive set of vendors and suppliers, PCE’s policy requires it to: 
 

1. Strive to use local businesses and provide fair compensation in the purchase of 
services and supplies;  

2. Proactively seek services from local businesses and from businesses that have 
been Green Business certified and/or are taking steps to protect the 
environment; and 

3. Engage in efforts to reach diverse communities to ensure an inclusive pool of 
potential suppliers. 

 
General Order 156 (GO 156) is a California Public Utilities Commission ruling that 
requires utility entities to procure at least 21.5% of their contracts with majority women-
owned, minority-owned, disabled veteran-owned and LGBT-owned business 
enterprises' (WMDVLGBTBEs) in all categories. Qualified businesses become GO 156 
Certified through the CPUC and are then added to the GO 156 Clearinghouse 
database. The CPUC Clearinghouse can be found 
here: www.thesupplierclearinghouse.com. 
 
While PCE is not legally-required to comply with GO 156, PCE’s policies and 
commitment to diversity are consistent with the principles of GO 156, and, therefore, 
respondents to this RFP are asked to voluntarily disclose their GO 156 certification 
status as well as their efforts to work with diverse business enterprises, including those 
owned or operated by women (WBE), minorities (MBE), disabled veterans (DVBE), and 
lesbian, gay, bisexual, or transgender people (LGBTBE). 
 
As a public agency and consistent with state law, PCE will not use any such provided 
information in any part of its decision-making or selection process.  Rather, PCE will use 
that information solely to help evaluate how well it is conforming to its own policies and 
goals.  

Pursuant to California Proposition 209, PCE does not give preferential treatment 
based on race, sex, color, ethnicity, or national origin. 

 

9 PCE Legal Obligations 
 
PCE is not obligated to respond to any offer submitted as part of the RFP.  All parties 
acknowledge that PCE is a public agency subject to the requirements of the California 
Public Records Act, Cal. Gov. Code section 6250 et seq.  PCE acknowledges that 
another party may submit information to PCE that the other party considers confidential, 
proprietary, or trade secret information pursuant the Uniform Trade Secrets Act (Cal. 
Civ. Code section 3426 et seq.), or otherwise protected from disclosure pursuant to an 
exemption to the California Public Records Act (Government Code sections 6254 and 
6255) (“Confidential Information”).  Any such other party acknowledges that PCE may 
submit to the other party Confidential Information.  Upon request or demand of any third 
person or entity not a party to this RFP ("Requestor") for production, inspection and/or 

https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.thesupplierclearinghouse.com&sa=D&ust=1544567319100000&usg=AFQjCNGa3crLR9y4xfMRc94PlK_Na-of9g


  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 8 of 17 
 

copying of information designated as Confidential Information by a party disclosing such 
information (“Disclosing Party”), the party receiving such information (“Receiving Party”), 
as soon as practical but within three (3) business days of receipt of the request, shall 
notify the Disclosing Party that such request has been made, by telephone call, letter 
sent via email and/or by US Mail to the address or email address listed on the cover 
page of the RFP.  The Disclosing Party shall be solely responsible for taking whatever 
legal steps are necessary to protect information deemed by it to be Confidential 
Information and to prevent release of information to the Requestor by the Receiving 
Party.  If the Disclosing Party takes no such action, after receiving the foregoing notice 
from the Receiving Party, the Receiving Party shall be permitted to comply with the 
Requestor's demand and is not required to defend against it. 
 

10 General Terms and Conditions 
 
1. PCE’s Reserved Rights: PCE may, at its sole discretion: withdraw this Request 

for Proposal at any time, and/or reject any or all materials submitted. 
Respondents are solely responsible for any costs or expenses incurred in 
connection with the preparation and submittal of the materials for this RFP.  

 
2. Public Records: All documents submitted in response to this RFP will become 

the property of PCE upon submittal and will be subject to the provisions of the 
California Public Records Act and any other applicable disclosure laws.  

 
3. No Guarantee of Contract: PCE makes no guarantee that a contractor and/ or 

firm added to the qualified vendor list will result in a contract.  
 

4. Response is Genuine: By submitting a response pursuant to this RFP, 
Respondent certifies that this submission is genuine, and not sham or collusive, 
nor made in the interest or on behalf of any person not named therein; the 
submitting firm has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other 
submitting firm to put in a sham bid, or any other person, firm or corporation to 
refrain from submitting a submission, and the submitting firm has not in any 
manner sought by collusion to secure for themselves an advantage over any 
other submitting firm. 

 
 

11 Detailed Project Description 
 
See following page. 
 
  



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 9 of 17 
 

Project Description 
 

1 Overview 

Peninsula Clean Energy’s (PCE) mission is to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in San Mateo 

County. Emissions from transportation and building natural gas use comprise the largest two sources of 

GHGs within the county.  This project has the objective of reducing transportation emissions by piloting 

new solutions/technologies focused on low-power charging for residents of multi-unit dwellings 

(MUDs).  

 

Residential charging is highly important to electric vehicle (EV) drivers. Yet, residential charging is 

currently readily available primarily to those who reside in single-family homes. Approximately half the 

population of San Mateo County lives in MUDs or other residential scenarios with limited access to 

charging.  The majority of these MUDs were never designed to include charging capability. As such, 

retroactively installing and operating EV charging equipment in MUDs is generally difficult for multiple 

reasons including installation and operational costs (perceived and real), landlord/owner concerns, 

billing, lack of business models, etc. In addition, research indicates that the majority of these MUDs, 

especially apartments, are older and have highly constrained power availability. While service upgrades 

are possible, such upgrades can greatly increase the cost of installing EV charging infrastructure. 

 

To address MUDs, most EV charging technologies have historically focused on 220/240 volt solutions, 

typically called “Level 2”. These options provide higher charging rates but consume more power, limiting 

the number of vehicles that can be served in a capacity-constrained scenario. The average mileage for 

San Mateo County is 25-30 miles daily1. Given this daily mileage, most driving requirements can 

therefore be easily served by low power 110/120 volt charging, typically called “Level 1” charging. The 

objective of this project is to identify, pilot, and assess Level 1 charging solutions for multi-unit dwellings 

and similar residential scenarios.   

 

2 Term and Budget Range 

The contract will be for up to 3 years and the maximum budget will not exceed $400,000. This budget 

does not include acquiring or operating the solution/technology. Installation shall be billed on an actual 

cost basis as invoiced by the construction contractors. Proposals should include installation cost 

estimates recognizing that the installation costs will be finalized during the course of the project based 

on site and technology specifics. 

 

3 Contractor Responsibilities  

3.1 Project Administration 

                                              
 
 
1 See http://www.vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/daily-miles-traveled  

http://www.vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/daily-miles-traveled


  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 10 of 17 
 

Contractor will execute required project administration. Contractor activities will include: 

1. Developing a detailed project plan, 

2. Providing monthly progress reports, 

3. Participating in regular meetings and calls with PCE as mutually determined, 

4. Providing budget reporting, 

5. Providing invoices for all major supplies and equipment purchased, 

6. Providing subcontracts for all subcontractors, and 

7. Documenting and providing any additional information as determined by PCE. 

 

3.2 Business Needs Assessment & Requirements 

Contractor will identify and engage stakeholders to execute a needs assessment for low-power charging 

solutions. Contractor activities will include: 

1. Working with PCE to define the universe of relevant stakeholders  

2. Determining an outreach and engagement/ data collection strategy to gather information, 

3. Executing the outreach and engagement/ data collection strategy in collaboration with PCE as 

mutually determined, 

4. Prioritizing features by stakeholder in consultation with PCE, and  

5. Documenting the features into formal requirements. 

 

These business requirements to be defined will include: 

1. Addressing vehicle charging requirements and maximize the number of vehicles served under 

power constrained conditions, 

2. EV driver needs, 

3. EVSE capital and operating costs,  

4. Addressing the needs of property owners to manage the charging solution such as access 

control, payment management, and operational support, 

5. Potentially including grid serving features as determined by PCE, and  

6. Replicability/ scalability. 

 

3.3 Solution/Technology Research 

Contractor will research promising solutions either in the market or that can be developed by private 

parties which meet the requirements identified in 3.2. The research and a summary of conclusions will 

be delivered in document form. 

 

The research should identify:  

1. Channels to utilize for the competitive procurement process (3.4),  

2. The “market gap” between available technologies and the desired requirements,  

3. Pros and cons of different solution approaches,  

4. Feasibility of the gap being closed by suppliers, 

5. The conditions under which suppliers may be able to provide the desired features, and 

6. Least expensive (capital + operating) solution  



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 11 of 17 
 

7. Any additional conditions, services and support that prospective solutions would need to be 

successful in the market. 

3.4 Solution/Technology Acquisition 

With Contractor, PCE proposes to pilot one or more solutions.  Contractor will work with PCE to acquire 

technologies to pilot. PCE may execute RFPs and will purchase the technologies sufficient units for use in 

the pilot(s). Contractor activities will include:  

1. Defining the final set of requirements to utilize for the pilots, 

2. Develop a formal Request for Proposals utilizing those requirements, 

3. Circulate the RFP to relevant channels, and  

4. Assist in scoring the proposals. 

 

3.5 Pilot Site Recruitment 

Contractor will recruit 3-5 suitable sites per pilot. Contractor activities will include:  

1. Collaboratively defining the criteria for pilot site candidates, 

2. Developing with PCE the site agreements to be executed between Contractor and the site 

owner for participation, 

3. Recommending for participation specific sites meeting the criteria, 

4. Recruiting the property owners of mutually agreed upon sites, and 

5. Executing site agreements with the property owners. 

 

3.6 Installation Management & Site Support 

Contractor will manage or assist in the coordination of the installation of the technologies and their 

ongoing operation.  It is expected that the pilots will operate for 18 months. Contractor activities will 

include:  

1. Working with property owners on site readiness including developing site policies, training and 

other needs for successful operation of the technologies, 

2. Working with the property owners to execute communications to prospective users of the 

technologies, 

3. Selecting appropriate construction contractors complying with the PCE Sustainable Workforce 

policy, 

4. Directly managing the contractors throughout the installation process or assisting the property 

owner in managing the installation if the property owner wishes to manage the installation 

directly,  

5. Validating the successful installation and completing any required technology configuration 

6. Working with the property owners, recruit EV drivers to utilize the technology to charge 

vehicles, and  

7. Once in operational mode, collect feedback on the technology performance from the property 

owners and residents plus respond as necessary.  

 

3.7 Assessment and Disposition 



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 12 of 17 
 

Contractor will assess the technology and address any final disposition required. Contractor activities 

will include:  

1. Providing an assessment of the technical, financial and usability performance of the technology,  

2. Work with the technology vendor and property owner to correct issues where possible, and 

3. If deemed necessary by PCE and the property owner due to technology failure, remove the 

technology from site(s). 

 

3.8 Final Report and Recommendations 

Contractor will develop a final report. The final report will include:  

1. Executive summary, 

2. Itemized description of outcomes for each project objective, 

3. Itemized description of any additional accomplishments, 

4. A matrix of technology effectiveness by pilot and readiness for scaled deployment including 

installation, usability, charging effectiveness, administrability, cost (installation & operation) and 

other targeted features, 

5. Building load impacts, 

6. Evaluated conclusions drawn from the project including lessons learned and recommendations 

for future work, 

7. Financial summary comparing expenditures to the project budget, and 

8. Supplemental documentation which must include, as appropriate, technical designs, permits, 

equipment specifications, photographs of installed equipment and participants, and materials 

developed for partner use. 

 

  



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 13 of 17 
 

PCE Supplier Diversity Questionnaire (Optional) 

Providing information in this questionnaire is optional. As a public agency and 
consistent with state law, PCE will not use any such provided information in any part of 
its decision-making or selection process. 
 
Contact information:  
 

Business Name  

Email address  

Phone number  

Where is your business 
located/headquartered? 

 

Labor Diversity: 

1. Is your business certified under General Order 156 (GO 156)? 
 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

☐  Qualified as WMDVLGBTBEs, but not GO 156 Certified 

If you answered either “Yes” or “Qualified” above, please choose all 

categories that apply below. 
 

☐  Woman-owned  

☐  Minority-owned 

☐  Disabled Veteran-owned 

☐  LGBT-owned 

 

2. Does your business use subcontractors that are certified under GO 156? 
 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

☐  Qualified as WMDVLGBTBEs, but not GO 156 Certified 

If you answered either “Yes” or “Qualified” above, please choose all 

categories that apply below. 
 

☐  Woman-owned  

☐  Minority-owned 

☐  Disabled Veteran-owned 

☐  LGBT-owned 

 



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 14 of 17 
 

3. Does your business have hiring targets of minority-owned, women-owned, 
LGBTQ-owned, or disabled veteran-owned subcontractors? 
 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

☐  Not applicable 

 

Labor Agreements: 

 

This section of questions focuses on the labor agreements of your business. If your 
business/contract with PCE does not have a labor component, please answer "not 

applicable." 

 
1. Does your business have history of using local-hires, union labor, or multi-trade 

project labor agreements? 
 

☐ Yes, within PCE’s service area of San Mateo County 

☐ Yes, CA-based labor, but not local to PCE’s service area of San 

Mateo County 

☐  No 

☐  Not applicable 

 
If you answered “Yes, within PCE’s service area of San Mateo County” 
above, please provide the percentage of labor agreements with local, union, 
and multi-trade labor (if available) and describe past efforts. 
 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 

 
If you answered “Yes, CA-based labor, but not local to PCE’s service area of 
San Mateo County” above, from where in California is the labor sourced? 
 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 

 



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 15 of 17 
 

2. In your proposed contract with PCE, does your business plan to use local hires, 
union labor, or multi-trade project labor agreements? 
 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

☐  Not applicable 

If you answered “Yes” above, please quantify the number of such labor 

agreements and explain. 
 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 

 

3. Does your business pay workers prevailing wage rates or the equivalent?  
 

Prevailing wage in California is required by state law for all workers 
employed on public works projects and determined by the California 
Department of Industrial Relations according to the type of work and 
location of the project. To see the latest prevailing wage rates, go 
to www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html 

 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

☐  Not applicable 

 
4. In your proposed contract with PCE, does your business pay and/or plan to pay 

prevailing wages or the equivalent? 
 

To see the latest prevailing wage rates, go to www.dir.ca.gov/Public-
Works/Prevailing-Wage.html 
 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

☐  Not applicable 

 

5. Does your business support and/or use apprenticeship programs?  
 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

☐  Not applicable 

https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html&sa=D&ust=1544567438206000&usg=AFQjCNGyfZi3Ztjo_GIJlpa-hfRoux-BhQ
https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html&sa=D&ust=1544567438207000&usg=AFQjCNH1qfXFuzdeHvi38KEWWoCBK0D3Sw
https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html&sa=D&ust=1544567438207000&usg=AFQjCNH1qfXFuzdeHvi38KEWWoCBK0D3Sw


  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 16 of 17 
 

 
If you answered “Yes” above, please describe the apprenticeship programs 
your business plans to use. 
 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 

 
6. Does your business employ workers and/or use businesses from PCE’s service 

area of San Mateo County? 
 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

 
If you answered “Yes” above, please quantify the number of 
workers/businesses, the businesses used, and in which communities the 
workers or business reside. 
 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 

 
Equity, Diversity, Inclusion, and Environmental Justice: 
 

PCE is committed to equity, diversity, inclusion, and environmental justice both within 

our organization and within our communities.  

 
1. Does your business have initiatives to promote workplace diversity? 

 

☐ Yes 

☐  No 

 
If you answered “Yes” above, please describe such initiatives or provide any 
supporting statistics or documentation for diversity within the business. 
 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 



  PCE 2019 Request for Proposals 

Page 17 of 17 
 

______________________________________________________________
___ 

 
2. What other efforts related to equity, diversity, inclusion, or environmental justice 

does your business pursue? 
 

______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 

 
3. If there is anything else related to supplier diversity that is not captured in your 

answers above, please describe below: 
 

______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 
______________________________________________________________
___ 



  Item No. 7 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING of the Executive Committee of the 

Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (PCEA) 
Monday, December 10, 2018 

 MINUTES  
 

8:00 a.m. 
 

Peninsula Clean Energy 
2075 Woodside Road, Redwood City, CA 94061  

 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Meeting was called to order at 8:09 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Jeff Aalfs, Town of Portola Valley, Chair 

Rick DeGolia, Town of Atherton, Vice Chair 
Carole Groom, County of San Mateo 
Donna Colson, City of Burlingame 
Catherine Carlton, City of Menlo Park 
Pradeep Gupta, City of South San Francisco  

 
Absent:    Dave Pine, County of San Mateo 

Wayne Lee, City of Millbrae 
Rick Bonilla, City of San Mateo 

 
Staff:   Jan Pepper, CEO 

Andy Stern, CFO 
Jay Modi, Director of Finance and Administration 
Rafael Reyes, Director of Energy Programs 
Siobhan Doherty, Director of Power Resources 
Matthew Sanders, Deputy County Counsel 
Anne Bartoletti, Board Clerk/Executive Assistant to the CEO 

 
A quorum was established. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No public comment. 
 



  Item No. 7 

 2 

 
ACTION TO SET AGENDA AND TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Motion Made / Seconded:  Carlton / DeGolia 
 
Motion passed unanimously 5-0  (Absent:  Pine, Lee, Bonilla, Gupta) 
 
 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 
 

1. CHAIR REPORT 
 
Jeff Aalfs reported that staff and Board members are meeting with legislators in 
preparation for the upcoming legislative session. 
 

 
2. CEO REPORT 

 
Chief Executive Officer Jan Pepper reported that meetings took place with State Senator 
Wiener, Assemblymember Berman, Assemblymember Ting, and Assemblymember 
Mullin’s staff.  She announced that Pradeep Gupta was one of three candidates 
recommended by CalCCA for appointment to the California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC).  Jan reported that PG&E’s new rates will likely change on March 1, 2019 rather 
than on January 1, 2019.   

 
 

3. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF FOUR NEW PCE POLICIES DESIGNED TO SATISFY DATA-
PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS OF THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES 
COMMISSION 
 
Matthew Sanders—Deputy County Counsel—reported that in 2012, the CPUC issued 
Decision 12-08-045 (Decision), which extended certain requirements for protecting the 
privacy of Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) data (i.e., customer energy usage 
data) to Community Choice Aggregators (CCAs). The PUC’s Decision requires that CCAs 
provide a notice to customers regarding how their energy usage data is handled, and 
adopt policies to ensure that PCE protects the privacy of customer energy usage 
data.  Matthew reviewed the four policies presented to the Executive Committee. 

 
Motion Made / Seconded:  Carlton / DeGolia 
 
Motion passed unanimously 6-0  (Absent:  Pine, Lee, Bonilla) 
 
 

4. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF FOUR-YEAR EV INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM 
 
Rafael Reyes—Director of Energy Programs—reviewed a proposal for a four-year $16 
million program to accelerate deployment of approximately 3,000 electric vehicle (EV) 
charge ports across target segments in alignment with California state targets.  He 



  Item No. 7 

 3 

reported that this program is projected to include $28 million in complementary funding 
from PG&E, the CEC (California Energy Commission), BAAQMD (Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District), Electrify America, and private sources.  Rafael requested the 
Executive Committee recommend approval by PCE’s Board of the EV Infrastructure 
Program. 
 

Motion Made / Seconded:  Colson / Carlton 
 
Motion passed unanimously 6-0  (Absent:  Pine, Lee, Bonilla) 
 
 

5. REVIEW 2019 EV RIDE & DRIVE MARKETING 
 
Rafael Reyes reported that surveys show that over 50% of EV purchasers report having 
direct experience either driving, or having ridden in, an EV.  He reported that PCE’s 2018 
EV Ride and Drive Program will have produced five events through the end of December 
2018.  Rafael reported that marketing the 2019 EV Ride & Drive Program will involve 
contracting with a consultant to increase the number of participants, engage a broader 
community, and maximize the visibility of EVs and EV adopters. 
 
 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 
Pradeep Gupta reported that he had just returned from New York City where the 
housing authority has committed to building over 100,000 affordable housing homes.  
He reported that Assemblymember Chiu would like to establish an agency for the Bay 
Area to handle financing of affordable housing units. 
 
Jan Pepper reported that PCE’s Citizens Advisory Committee is planning to form ad hoc 
committees that focus on priorities of PCE staff and the Board. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 9:37 a.m. 
 


	00 DRAFT 2019-03-11 PCE EC Agenda
	05.0 2010.03.11 MUD Low Power Pilot Project_JP
	05.1 PCE-RFP-2019-MUD-Low-Power-EVI-Pilot
	1 RFP Overview
	2 About Peninsula Clean Energy (PCE)
	3 RFP Schedule
	4 Proposal Submittal
	5 Content of Response
	6 Review and Selection Process
	7 Agreement Terms
	8 Supplier Diversity
	9 PCE Legal Obligations
	10 General Terms and Conditions
	11 Detailed Project Description
	1 Overview
	2 Term and Budget Range
	3 Contractor Responsibilities
	3.1 Project Administration
	3.2 Business Needs Assessment & Requirements
	3.3 Solution/Technology Research
	3.4 Solution/Technology Acquisition
	3.5 Pilot Site Recruitment
	3.6 Installation Management & Site Support
	3.7 Assessment and Disposition
	3.8 Final Report and Recommendations

	07 2018-12-10 EC minutes_JP and Matt approved

